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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Auriga Academy Trust trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and
auditors’ reports of the charitable company for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual
report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.
The Trust operates 3 special academies Clarendon School, Strathmore School and Capella House School and
caters for pupils aged 4 to 19. For the year ended 31 August 20, the 3 schools have a combined pupil capacity
of 248 and had a roll of 265 in the October 2019 school census. The Trust serves a catchment area in
Richmond and Kingston with pupils also being admitted from the neighbouring boroughs of Hounslow,
Wandsworth and Surrey.
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.
The Trustees of The Auriga Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes
of company law. The Charitable Company operates as The Auriga Academy Trust.
Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details on page 1.
Members Liability
Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they
ceased to be a Member.
Trustees’ Indemnities
Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue of any rule of
law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of
which they may be guilty in relation to The Auriga Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance in the year was
£4,662.
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
Vacancies on the Board of Trustees are addressed through a recruitment process which involves sourcing a
potential shortlist from the existing Local Governing Bodies and upstanding Members of the local community.
Candidates are assessed by the Chair and Vice Chair of Trustees and the Chief Executive Officer.
Appointments are focused on the needs of the Trust. A skills and knowledge audit is conducted every 2 years
at Trust level in order to identify recruitment and training needs.
Subject to Articles 48-49 and 53, the Articles of The Auriga Academy Trust require that the makeup of the
Board of Trustees be as follows:

Up to 12 Trustees appointed by the Members by Ordinary Resolution (Article 50);

A minimum of 2 Parent Trustees, if no provision is made for at least 2 Parent Local Governors on each
established Local Governing Body (Article 46c);

Co-opted Trustees may be appointed under Article 58 (Article 47);

The total number of Trustees who are employed by the Trust will not exceed one third of the total number
of trustees (Article 50B);

Local Authority Associated Persons cannot exceed 20% or more of the total number of trustees.
The term of office for any Trustee is 4 years.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
On joining the Trust a Trustee is provided with a copy of the Articles of Association, a copy of the Academies
Financial Handbook, is required to sign the Trustee Code of Conduct and is encouraged to visit the schools
within the Trust. Trustees are provided with access to copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts,
budgets, plans and other documentation that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. The training
and induction provided for each new Trustee will depend on their existing experience and where necessary
induction will provide training on charity, educational, legal and financial matters.
The Academy Trust performs a skills audit of Trustees every 2 years, should any gaps be identified training
courses are offered to address these issues. All schools subscribe to the Local Authorities Governors Support
and Continuing Professional Development Programme (SPARK) which offers a compressive range of training
programmes. In house training is also provided in particular areas, for example, finance.
Organisational Structure
The academy has established a management structure to enable its efficient running. The organisational
structure consists of five levels; the Members, the Board of Trustees, Local Governing Bodies including the
sub-committees, Senior Leadership Teams and Members of staff. The aim of the management structure is to
devolve responsibility and encourage engagement and decision making at all levels.
Roles and
responsibilities at each level are detailed in the Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference for each
committee.
The Members hold the Trust Board accountable and are responsible for Trust Board appointments.
The Trust Board is responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust, with the primary focus being ensuring the
best educational outcomes for all pupils and young persons in its schools. The Trust is also responsible for
setting general policy, making decisions regards the direction of the Trust, adopting an annual review of long
term strategic plans and budgets, monitoring each school’s performance, oversight of capital expenditure and
approval of senior staff appointments. All statutory policies and procedures are reviewed and approved by the
Trust Board to ensure consistency of understanding and practice across the Trust.
Each Local Governing Body receives delegated authority from the Trust Board to support the Trust in fulfilling
its obligations. The Scheme of Delegation details which matters are delegated. In summary, Local Governing
Bodies remain responsible for setting local policies, developing and monitoring the School Development Plans
and setting a 3 year budget. The Trust Board approves and submits one consolidated budget to the Education
Skills Funding Agency and monitors the use of budgets by academies against this.
The Head Teacher of each school is directly responsible for its day-to-day operations and is assisted by their
Senior Leadership Team. The Head Teachers are responsible for the appointment of all staff with the
exception of Leadership posts. The Scheme of Delegation states that leadership posts are appointed in
conjunction with the Trustees.
The Chief Executive of the Trust assumes the role of the Accounting Officer.
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The arrangements for setting the pay and remuneration of the academies key management personnel are
monitored by the Finance & Resources Committee which comprises of at least 3 trustees. The Trust Board
has adopted the principles of the Local Authorities model Teachers’ Pay Policy which has been based on the
national agreement for teachers, agreed in consultation with the trade union representatives.
The Local Governing Body Pay Committees have delegated responsibility to implement and monitor the Trust
Wide Pay Policy for teachers and support staff. The Trust has reviewed and aligned teacher and support staff
roles and salaries in order to ensure that there is consistency and fairness across the Trust.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Trade union facility time
Relevant union officials
Number of employees who were relevant
union officials during the relevant period
0

Full-time equivalent employee number
0

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time

Number of employees

0%
1%-50%
51%-99%
100%

0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Provide the total cost of facility time

0

Provide the total pay bill
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill
spent on facility time, calculated as:
(total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) x 100

0
0

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities such
as a percentage of total paid facility time hours
calculated as:
(total hours spent on paid trade union activities
by relevant union officials during the relevant
period ÷ total paid facility time hours) x 100

0

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations.
Clarendon School and Strathmore School work alongside Friends of Clarendon (Charity Number 267119) and
Friends of Strathmore School (“FOSS”) (Charity Number 1024661) respectively to raise funds for the benefit of
pupils and support their wider education.
Friends of Clarendon support the school community with pupil led fund raising and social activities for parents.
This year Friends of Strathmore School (FOSS) have raised funds to enhance the pupils’ environment,
providing musical instruments and specialised classroom resources. FOSS has also part funded the 6th Form
Leavers celebration and funded sessions with Music for Autism. FOSS is a chosen beneficiary of the Victoria
Foundation (a local based charity) which this year has funded a new junior school soft play room. In
conjunction with the school, FOSS hosts and part funds family focused social events to strengthen parental
engagement.
Throughout the year each school usually holds several fund raising events to support national charities and
also a range of other smaller local charities. Due to the impact of COVID-19 these activities were severely
curtailed and limited to the 2019 Autumn Term. Fund raising can be school wide or class specific and staff
regularly engage in fund raising for charities of their own choice.
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
The principle object and activity of the charitable company is to advance, for the public benefit, special
educational provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Auriga Academy Trust’s strategic vision is to provide an outstanding education for all pupils with SEND in
the local community whatever their individual difficulties and needs.
The Trusts objectives are

for all pupils and students to make outstanding, measurable progress; both towards individual academic
targets and as a whole person functioning in her or his community with confidence and high self-esteem.

to develop each young person by matching high expectations with specialised and appropriate teaching
and support.

to provide access to a fun, flexible and personalised creative curriculum in which meaningful learning
opportunities are provided in real life contexts.

to develop and enhance the communication skills of each young person by using multi-modal means such
as sign, symbol and voice output as appropriate.

to prepare our students for adulthood with as much independence as possible.

to set the highest possible standards for our staff whether it is leadership, teaching or therapy, as in order
for our pupils and students to receive outstanding education they must receive outstanding teaching and
support.

to be an integral part of the local community by having the capacity to offer places and provide support to
those young persons with Special Educational Needs. Growth should be considered not only in relation to
pupil numbers but also in terms of the services the Trust offers. The Trusts aim is to develop further as a
centre of excellence supporting schools within the local community.
The Trust believes it can achieve this by

working in a supportive partnership with the special schools within the Trust, with each school maintaining
its unique identity and ethos so that it can cater for the specific needs of its pupils and students.

building on the current expertise and experience of staff within schools through continued professional
development aimed at meeting the needs of pupils,

sharing curriculum best practice across the Trust by appointing Trust wide curriculum and specialist leads.

supporting the specific needs of our pupils and students by directly commissioning therapy services and
engaging extra support to ensure that interventions are targeted and as responsive as possible.

creating economies of scale by sharing core administrative functions and by negotiating bought in services
for our schools which will enable greater investment where it matters, in the classroom.

addressing the future demand for specialist provision now.
The main activities the Trust will undertake in order to achieve Trust’s objectives will be to

continue to invest in people recognising that employees are the Trust’s main asset.

actively working with the Local Authority to
o understand the type of provision required within the Borough and the level of demand for places in
the future.
o address the increasing demand for places within our special schools by finding short term and long
term solutions.
o support the growing demand for alternative needs provision by working with external providers
providing assistance where appropriate.
o ensure that funding is secure and appropriate to the needs of our pupils and students;
o ensure that therapies are commissioned effectively;
o streamline the placement procedure ensuring that pupils support needs are identified early and
they are placed in the appropriate setting.

streamline the operations of the Trust by continuing to review the effectiveness of internal operating
procedures and Governance across all levels.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Public Benefit
The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties. In setting our objectives and planning our activities
the Trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.
The Trustees believe that the Academy Trust’s aims, together with the activities outlined above, are
demonstrably to the public benefit.
The Auriga Academy Trust is founded on the vision that we can provide outstanding learning experiences for
the pupils and students with special educational needs in our local communities both now and in the future. All
our academies are co-located with mainstream schools ensuring that inclusion is a key focus in both schools’
curriculums with the aim of fostering a better understanding of special educational needs and disability.
Wherever possible each academy aims to contribute to the benefit of the wider public by making available its
specialist resources and the premises to third parties for the provision of educational and other opportunities.
STRATEGIC REPORT
The Auriga Academy Trust is in its fourth year of operation and as at 31 August 2020 comprised of 3
academies, Clarendon School, Strathmore School and Capella House School.
Clarendon School is a community special school for pupils aged 4 to 16 with moderate learning difficulties,
many of whom have additional complex needs, including autism. The school manages an offsite centre, The
Gateway, which is for pupils aged 11 to 16 who have a diagnosis of ASD. The Centre is located adjacent to
Twickenham School. Clarendon School was OFSTED inspected in January 2019 and was classified as
Outstanding.
Strathmore School is a community special school for pupils aged 4 to 19 with complex learning difficulties.
Many pupils have an additional diagnosis of Autistic Spectrum Disorders or have additional physical and
sensory disabilities. The School was OFSTED inspected in January 2019 and was classified as Good.
Capella House School is a Free School specialising in speech, language and communication needs. The
school opened on 1 September 2019 with 12 secondary pupils.
Achievements and Performance
Assessment has changed due to the removal of National Curriculum Levels.
determine its own method of assessment that measures pupil progress.

Each school is required to

Clarendon School
Clarendon School has recently moved from Classroom Monitor to a bespoke version of the Arbor Assessment
module to record teacher assessments of pupil progress at the Secondary Centre. The Primary Centre have
developed their own recording system since so many differing assessments are required. Teachers record the
small steps the pupils make and use these steps to build a bigger picture of the pupils' learning and
achievements. Progress is recorded at least termly. Pupils also complete work each half term for their Golden
Books, in which examples of assessed work are included as evidence of pupil progress. Teaching staff
moderate their judgements internally each term for both English and Maths, and the school also takes part in
external moderation meetings at least annually with other similar special schools to ensure consistency in the
levelling of children’s work. In addition to teacher assessments, each child completes standardised
assessments annually in reading, spelling and maths.
The results of cohorts of pupils are analysed by teaching group, gender, specific need and by ethnicity to
ensure that no groups are underperforming, and targeted interventions are then put in place for individuals or
groups making less than expected progress.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and Performance (continued)
The majority of pupils leaving Clarendon at the end of year 11 will have achieved a broad range of
qualifications, from GCSE and BTEC level one qualifications to Entry Level Certificates. All go on to further
education, either at colleges or within special school post 16 provisions. Despite the pandemic, the average
point score of Clarendon Year 11 pupils in 2020 rose by 30.6 points from 2019, to 112.8.
The average progress in reading (according to standardised testing) over the 5 years to 2019 had been 12.6
months, above the national average for all pupils. Average annual progress in spelling had increased annually
over the four years to 2019. The coronavirus pandemic in 2020, and subsequent partial closure of the school
throughout lockdown, has led to a slight decrease in the rate of progress in reading (9.7 months average
progress) in the academic year 2019/20, and prevented our annual standardised testing in maths and spelling
at the Secondary Centre. Pupils are being re-baselined early in the autumn term of 2020 in order to identify
newly opened gaps in attainment.
The school has worked with four other similar special schools, all graded Good or Outstanding by Ofsted, to
compile a Flight Path, which enables us to set targets in English and maths in line with upper quartile progress
across the whole data set. Using this Flight Path tool, in 2018/19:

88% of primary aged pupils achieved better than median progress in spoken language, with average
progress in the upper quartile

87% of all pupils achieved better than median progress in writing, with average progress in the upper
quartile

84% of pupils achieved better than median progress in maths, with average progress in the upper
quartile.
No specific groups were found to have underperformed when compared to average progress across the school
in 2018/19. As a result of the pandemic, much of this data is unavailable for 2019/20. Our new baseline
testing in the Autumn term 2020 will enable us to focus effective interventions on closing any identified gaps
that may have opened during this period.
The school has a well-defined and fully integrated life skills curriculum against which pupils are assessed
regularly. There has been a significant increase in Occupational Therapy provision within the school since the
formation of the Trust.
Each of the fourteen pupils leaving the Gateway Centre between 2017 and 2019 achieved between 4 and 8
GCSE passes including English, Maths and science in line with expectations. All have gone on to college
placements. Gateway leavers in 2020 were disadvantaged by the cancellation of examinations - several have
chosen to sit the exams missed this term, after their leave date.
The School’s curriculum is reviewed on an on-going basis to ensure that it meets the needs of the children and
is modified accordingly. For example, a particularly able group has been identified in year 10 in science, and
have begun working towards a double award GCSE in this subject.
The school adopts differing approaches to the differing behavioural needs of pupils. The house system and
awarding of reward points promotes positive behaviour and celebrates successes. Behavioural data, recorded
on Sleuth, demonstrates an annual decrease in the number of pupils involved in higher level unwanted
behaviours over the last three years. PASS data is collected by the school and usefully supports pupils'
connection with school and learning. No Clarendon pupils were excluded in 2019/20.
Clarendon has been awarded the Healthy Schools bronze and silver awards and The Arts Mark (Gold).
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and Performance (continued)
Clarendon School remained open to pupils throughout the pandemic in 2020. Initially, we were able to offer in
school places to about 20% of pupils. However, this grew throughout the period so that by the end of the
summer term about 75% of pupils were in school part or full-time, and all pupils were offered at least part-time
places. Pupils in receipt of free school meals were provided with lunches delivered by the school in the initial
period, and then with vouchers. Primary pupils unable to attend were provided with regular packs of activities
and resources, with plentiful online resources and regular contact with the staff team. Secondary pupils unable
to attend school were able to access a comprehensive online offer, with which most engaged very well.
Individual chromebooks were made available to any pupil that needed one. Parental feedback throughout the
lockdown period was overwhelmingly positive.
Strathmore School
Strathmore School tracks pupils’ progress towards their Annual Outcomes (as stated in their EHCP and set at
Annual Review) using MAPP (Mapping & Assessing Pupil Progress) which was developed by The Dales
School. The process enables school to track the progress pupils make towards each outcome within four
strands of the Continuum of Skill Development: Prompting (from dependent to independent), Fluency (from
approximate to accurate), Maintenance (from inconsistent to consistent) and Generalisation (from a single
context to many contexts). The school will be using the Engagement Profile & Scale to track progress of pupils
working at pre-subject specific levels. Outcomes are set from the Welsh Government Routes for Learning
Materials, MAPP Milestones and the EQUALS Moving On materials. Outcomes include specific literacy
(Communication & Interaction) and numeracy (Cognition) objectives. Pupils working at pre subject specific
learning have their progress measured by using the Engagement Profile and Scale developed by Professor
Barry Carpenter on behalf of the DfE.
Teachers record the small steps the pupils make and use these steps to set next small steps in pupils learning.
Progress is tracked twice in each term leading back to the Annual Review. Progress is moderated and
checked via Pupil Progress meetings with a Member of the School Leadership Team. This is to ensure that
specific areas are identified and addressed.
Throughout the year the school has developed a new, unique curriculum framework to cover the breadth of
learning that pupils at Strathmore are expected to cover. The school has simultaneously developed a unique
version of Earwig Learning that can record pupil’s curriculum coverage during their school career as well as
their EHCP achievements
The new App also enables parents to view the records (including videos) of their child’s learning and
experiences and to both comment on school records and upload their own records of their sons and daughter’s
experiences and achievements out of school.
Covid-19 inevitably impacted on pupils’ attendance. 80% of pupils were accommodated on a full or part time
basis with the remaining 20% kept away from school by their parents. All pupils had access to the online
learning resources and some physical resources were sent home for individuals. This has had an impact on
pupils learning and reference to prior learning was particularly important on the return to full opening. This has
identified which pupils demonstrated any dip in attainment and expectations were shared to support those to
re-attain skills.
Strathmore is recognised as a Rights Respecting School by UNICEF and has been awarded the Healthy
Schools Gold Award and The Arts Mark Award at Gold.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and Performance (continued)
Capella House School
Capella House School opened on 1 September 2019 with 14 secondary pupils. The primary building is due to
open 1 September 2021. When full the school will have a capacity of 72 pupils.
Capella House School experienced a very difficult first year. Student numbers were very much lower than
predicted when the school opened with some of those students being misplaced. This significantly impacted
staffing resulting in the school relying on agency staff. There was a change of Headteacher in spring 2020,
with the appointment of an Interim Headteacher in April 2020. By September, all teaching posts were filled
with substantive staff who have joined the school during the Interim Head Teachers tenure.
Academic progress has been difficult to assess as a result of Covid-19. All students and staff worked from
home for the period from 23rd March to 2nd June and so new Baseline assessments were conducted at the
beginning of the new school year in order or identify dips in learning over the Lockdown period.
In response to the needs of pupils who do attend the school, the curriculum has needed to be significantly
adapted which has also been a challenge with a small staff. Input from the Local Authority and other sources
is continuing to ensure that the curriculum is appropriate and meets the needs of the learners.
Strategic Impact of the COVID-19 Virus
On 6 January 2020 the Trust held its first Trust wide inset day for all staff. The day focused on agreeing
strategic Trust wide, but school led, objectives by promoting effective communication across the Trust. This
on-going initiative was curtailed as the pandemic made the primary focus of the Trust the welfare of pupils,
staff and families.
During the initial lock-down the Trust schools remained open for the vast majority of pupils, and the leadership
teams worked relentlessly to encourage parent to send their children to school. For those pupils studying at
home, significant time went into producing home learning resources and pupils were provided physical
resources including access technology. In school the safety of staff was carefully considered with general and
individual risk assessments. Staff shielding, and those staff working from home, focused on creating remote
resources, curriculum development work and undertaking professional development.
Where possible certain strategic initiatives were actioned in order to prepare adequately for the next academic
year and move the Trust forward. For example, a Trust wide ASD lead was recruited and appointed with
effected from 1 September 20.
The Trust continues to be concerned regards the actual potential redeployment of health staff, and the current
inability to recruit overseas trained therapists, which will impact the operations of the Trust by disrupting pupils
learning.
Key Financial Performance Indicators
The Trustees consider that the following are key performance indicators for the Academy Trust:

Pupil numbers have a direct impact on funding levels. The Trust continues to work with the Local Authority
through the Memorandum of Understanding to ensure that pupils are placed appropriately on a timely
basis to ensure that staffing levels correlate to pupil needs.

The percentage of income spent on staffing in 2019/20 was 79%. The Trustees are aware that this is high
in comparison to mainstream settings but as a special school it is felt to be justified for the support and
safekeeping of the children and is comparable to similar special school as detailed in the Educational
Services Funding Agency Benchmarking Reports.
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Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, as evidenced in the Finance and Resource Committee minutes and the
Trust Board minutes, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy Trust will have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Special Schools currently receive place value funding (£10k per pupil) and ‘top up funding’ based on a pupils
level of support need. In 2013, in consultation with Clarendon School and Strathmore School, a ‘top-up’
funding model was established with the Local Authority (London Borough of Richmond upon Thames) in order
to ensure that the needs of each school’s pupils were met. The funding model created a banding system
based on a pupil’s required support need. This forms the basis of the ‘top up’ income received by each school,
for each pupil, from the Local Authority and budgets are prepared on the basis that each school is staffed and
funded based on pupil need.
There has been no increase in the value of the ‘top-up’ bands since 2013. To date each school has funded
support staff and operational inflationary increases by utilising reserves. Given the projected use of reserves
to fund inflationary increases this position is unsustainable in the longer term.
The Trust has a good working relationship with the Local Authority and is currently in negotiation to agree a
sustainable ‘top-up’ funding model going forward. As part of this process a School Management Resource
Audit was undertaken by the Department for Education in August 2020.
In light of the fact that the funding position is currently being negotiated the Trust continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
FINANCIAL REVIEW
All schools within the Trust set their own school budgets. Each school manages its own staffing structure.
Costs directly correlate to the staffing needs of the individual pupils at each school which are reviewed
monthly. The Educational Services Funding Agency (ESFA) funds the place value based on pupil numbers
provided by the Local Authority for each school. The Local Authority funds any places for pupils placed in
school over and above this number. The Trust operates a Trust-wide needs-based banding model to identify
the specific funding requirements for each pupil, this is referred to as the pupil ‘top up’ funding. A
Memorandum of Understanding has been agreed with the Local Authority in order to facilitate a fair charging
mechanism for the pupil top-up funding. This is currently under review.
During the period £8,352,576 of ESFA and Local Authority grants were received. Restricted funds include
£34,028 of other income. Restricted fund expenditure was £8,920,525. The funding received from the ESFA
and the Local Authority and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.
The Academy also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, “Accounting for Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2005), such grants are
shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed
asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned.
Under the Charities SORP, it is necessary to charge projected deficits on the Local Government Pension
Scheme, which is provided to support staff, to a restricted fund. This results in reducing reserves shown in the
total funds of the Academy. It should be noted that this does not present the Academy with any current
liquidity problem. Overall the academy has a healthy balance sheet and cash flow and will be using reserves
to maintain the current assets and also to invest back into the school in the form of additional resources and
facilities both in the long term and the short term in conjunction with the School Development Plans and Trust
aims. The deficits in the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) are recognised on the balance sheet in
accordance with the provision of FRS102.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
During the period the assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support
services to the pupils of the academies.
The immediate financial impact of COVID-19 to the Trust has included the cost of covering staff who are selfisolating and waiting for test outcomes and the cost of the additional cleaning and PPE equipment.
Reserves Policy
Reserves brought over by each school joining the Trust are accounted for in the school’s statements. Each
school is responsible for setting their budget and the management of its reserves. There is no pooling of
reserves by the MAT. In the event that reserves are required to be spent over and above budgeted use, the
school, in conjunction with their Local Governing Body, can apply to the Trust to access these funds.
The level of reserves held by each school takes into account the nature of income and expenditure streams,
the need to match them with commitments, including future capital projects, and the nature of reserves. The
Trustees will keep this level of reserves under review and aim to build and maintain the reserves level whilst in
keeping with the principle object of the Trust.
Within the reserves policy, due to the accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the
academy recognises a significant pension fund deficit of £3,591,000. This deficit is included in restricted funds.
This does not lead to an immediate liability for this amount. Similarly, if there was a pension surplus included
in the restricted funds this would not create an immediately realisable asset that can be released straight away
and expended for the specific purpose of that fund. A surplus or deficit position of the pension scheme would
generally result in a cash flow effect of the Academy Trust in the form of an increase or decrease in employers’
pension contributions over a period of years. The Trust takes this fact into account when reviewing current
business plans and budgets, and ascertaining how the pension costs might affect budgets in the future. On
the basis that increased pension contributions should generally be met from the Trusts budgeted annual
income, whilst the deficit may not be eliminated there should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund or direct
impact on the unrestricted reserves of the Academy Trust due to the recognition of the deficit.
At 31 August 2020 the total funds comprised:
Unrestricted
Restricted:

Fixed asset funds
Pension reserve
Other

£304,483
£16,938,191
£(3,591,000)
£899,406
------------------------------------------------------------

£14,551,080
=====================================================

Investment Policy
The Trust does not hold any investments at the current time. The accounting policy will be determined should
the need arise.
The Board of Trustees are firmly committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are administered
under a risk adverse investment strategy. As such the Board do not consider the investment of surplus funds
as a primary activity, but rather a requirement for the effective management of the various funds entrusted to
the Board.
Due to the nature of the funding cycle, each academy may at times hold large cash balances which may not be
required for immediate use. In the event of such a situation the Board of Trustees has approved that cash may
be placed on short to medium term deposit having ensured that there is adequate cash available to meet the
ongoing operations of the academy for the period in question.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Companies Act 2006 s417(3b) requires disclosure of the principle risks and uncertainties facing a
company. The Trust is exposed to a number of financial risks including credit, cash flow and liquidity risks.
Given the Trust’s exposure to financial instruments being limited, the exposure principally relates to bank
balances, cash and trade creditors, with limited trade (and other) debtors. The academy’s system of internal
controls ensures risk is minimal in these areas.
Trust and Local Governing Body risk registers are updated and reviewed regularly at all committee and full
board meetings. Where appropriate, systems or procedures have been established to mitigate the risks each
academy faces. Internal control risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for authorisation of
all transactions and projects. Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed,
in particular those relating to the specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the
Academy, and its finances.
The Trustees have identified the following principal risks to the Trust.

Uncertainty regards future levels of ‘top-up’ funding. Following a School Resource Management Audit
undertaken in August 2020, sustainable ‘top-up’ funding levels are currently in the process of being
negotiated with the Local Authority.

Uncertainty regards the viability of Capella House School. The Capella House School Secondary site
opened 1 September 2019. Since opening the school has struggled to fill places based on its current pupil
profile. There is additional pressure regards pupil numbers given that The Capella House Primary site is
due to open 1 September 2021. The Trust will continue to work with the Local Authority to fill the requisite
number of places in order to make the school viable.

Uncertainty regards future levels of therapy funding. The Trust receives funding directly from the Local
Authority for Occupational Therapy. The Trust has developed a cost-effective in-house therapy model
whereby the Trust directly employs occupational therapists who train support staff creating an embedded
classroom approach benefiting all pupils. Despite a significant increase in pupil numbers, funding has not
increased. The Trust is working with the Local Authority to determine appropriate levels of funding within
the restraints of the Local Authority budget.

Uncertainty in pupil numbers and the implications for funding when budgeting. Actual pupil numbers
continue to fluctuate compared to budgeted due to the timing and processing of pupil applications. This
directly impacts on staff planning and the associated cost thereof. The Trust is addressing this by
continuing to actively work with the Local Authority to ensure pupil places are taken up on a timely basis
and that the appropriate staffing levels are in place to meet the needs of these pupils.

Teacher and support staff recruitment and retention continues to be of concern. This is being addressed
by
o Developing a Trust wide skills matrix and promoting inhouse expertise. During the 18/19
academic year a trust wide audit of teachers’ skills was undertaken identifying areas of
outstanding knowledge and practice and focus areas for development. The 20/21 academic year
will see the development of a Trust staffing model whereby staff can have Trust-wide responsibility
for certain areas hence providing opportunities for development whilst promoting best practice.
o Considering pay related incentives.
o Establishing a clear hierarchy of progression and development for all roles.
o Establishing and implementing a Trust wide People Plan.
FUNDRAISING
For the year ended 31 August 2020 the responsibility for fund raising was delegated to the individual schools.
Fund raising is generally done in relation to specific projects and in conjunction with each school’s parent
association and established fund-raising partners. The Trust has employed a part-time Grants Officer with the
focus of centrally identifying and securing grants to fund specific projects to support the schools within the
Trust and Trust wide initiatives. Covid-19 has severely curtailed all fund-raising activities.
Page 13

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
In July 2020 the Trust undertook its annual strategic review in order to review its strategic priorities. The
Trusts aim is to build on its reputation as a Centre of Excellence, by all stakeholders, with the focus being on
the provision of local high-quality education and support for all SEND pupils.
In order to deliver its strategic priorities, the Trust recognises that it needs to develop capacity for Trust Senior
Leaders to promote and implement the Trusts objectives. To do this the Trust is currently reviewing its
Leadership structure. The aim is to create a framework that allows school leaders to focus on pupils needs
whilst utilising cross Trust expertise. The Trust will maintain the strategic overview, ensuring pupils outcomes
are maximised by investing in expertise at a Trust level.
One Year Overview of Priorities

Continue to drive school improvement in order to improve pupil outcomes.

Continue to review all external therapy provision and ensure that it meets the needs of the Trust’s pupil s.







Continue to promote trust-wide teaching best practice by using a skills matrix to identify opportunities and
making collaboration between schools systematic.
Establish a Trust-wide training and development central administration function.
Embed inclusion opportunities across all school sites co-located with a mainstream school.
Develop the Trust People Plan to maintain the calibre of teaching required to match the needs of the
Trusts pupils.
Centralise the back office function across all schools with the aim of ensuring consistency and
effectiveness of all administerial operations.
Review Trust wide Governance to ensure it is effective in monitoring and holding schools and the Trust to
account.

Longer term Overview of Priorities

Retain a relentless focus on pupil outcomes by continuing to invest in professional development for all
staff.

To continue to review the curriculum offered in order to ensure that it meets the needs of our changing
cohorts.

Be the first choice for SEND education in the local area.

To continue to explore the opportunities for extending post 16 provision for a wide range of pupils with
SEND.

Establish the Trust as a centre of excellence providing support for other schools, and all stakeholders.

Look beyond 19 by facilitating a pathway with local businesses to provide work experience and
employment opportunities for young people with SEND.

Develop School buildings as `Hubs’ so the Trust is an integral part of the local community.
 Continue to review local SEND and work proactively with all stakeholders to review opportunities for
extending the range of provision offered if unmet needs are identified.

Page 14

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Auriga Academy Trust has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.
The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Auriga Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chief Executive
Officer acting as Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
GOVERNANCE
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:
Trustee

Meetings attended

Out of a possible

Mr Ivan Pryce, Chief Executive Officer

5

5

Mr Harry James, Chair
Dr Joanne Dixon, Vice Chair
Mrs Susan Connor, Finance Director
Ms Lorna Goodwin
Mr John Kipps
Mr Simon Mann
Mrs Gaelle Newland
Mr Paul Roberts
Mr Ashley Whittaker

4
5
5
4
5
4
5
5
5

5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

The Scheme of Delegation sets out that the Local Governing Bodies and Head Teachers of all Schools in the
trust should be as autonomous as possible. Therefore, while the Board of Trustees makes decisions, following
consultation with Local Governing Bodies, on matters which affect all schools in the trust, Local Governing
Bodies make decisions on matters affecting their individual schools. Local Governing Bodies and Head
Teachers are given maximum delegation of responsibility and decision making for the strategic direction and
day-to-day operation of their schools unless there is a cause for concern.
In March 2019 the Trustees’ conducted a governance self-evaluation using the Department for Educations
MAT Improvement Framework. The key finding was that the Trust could further strengthen the performance of
individual schools by promoting best practice across all the schools within the Trust. It was agreed that this
could be achieved by:

Agreeing the Trust strategic plan with the input of all stakeholders.

Using the Trust Strategic plan to inform individual local School Development plans.

The Trust maintaining a strategic overview by making LGBs accountable through the provision of agreed
Key performance Indicators.

Developing cross school collaboration further.
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GOVERNANCE (continued)
This has remained a focus throughout the 19/20 academic year but was curtailed by the operational impact to
schools of COVID-19.
The Trust has 3 sub-committees, The Finance & Resources Committee, The Audit & Effectiveness Committee
and an Executive Leadership Group. All 3 committees meet prior to and report to the Trust Board Meeting.
The Finance & Resources Committee is responsible for assisting the decision making of the Board of Trustees
by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to finance, premises and human resources, including
planning monitoring and probity, to ensure sound governance and management of The Auriga Academy
Trust’s resources.
Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustee
Mrs Susan Connor, Finance Director
Mr Harry James, Chair
Mr John Kipps
Mrs Gaelle Newland
Mr Simon Man
Mr Ivan Pryce, Chief Executive Officer

Meetings attended
4
4
4
4
2
4

Out of a possible
4
4
4
4
4
4

The key issues for the Finance & Resources Committee were:






Monitoring the financial impact of supporting the Capella House School in its first year of operation.
Monitoring negotiations with the Local Authority to secure additional occupational therapy funding.
Monitoring discussions with the Local Authority regards reviewing future funding through the established
pupil banding model.
Promoting Trust wide initiatives by approving the appointment of an ASD Lead, a Trust Clerk and CPD
Administrator and a Grants officer.
Understanding the financial impact of Covid-19 on the Trust which has included investment in
o additional online learning resources
o additional cleaning provision and health & safety equipment
o enhanced Employee Assistance Programmes.
o long term agency staff through honouring existing contracts.

The Audit & Effectiveness Committee is responsible for reviewing the risks to the Trust and in particular the
effectiveness of the system of financial internal controls. This committee is also responsible for monitoring the
performance in all areas of Trust governance including communication and the impact the Trust has on all
related parties.
Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:
Trustee
Dr Joanne Dixon, Chair
Ms Lorna Goodwin
Mr John Kipps
Mr Paul Roberts
Mr Ashley Whittaker

Meetings attended
3
2
2
2
3
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GOVERNANCE (continued)
The key issues for the Audit & Effectiveness Committee were:




Reviewing the outcomes of the 2018/19 year end audit and 2019/20 internal audit.
Understanding the operational issues facing the Capella House School in its first year of operation.
Monitoring the effectiveness of governance. In 2019 a review of the effectiveness of the Trust Board using
the MAT Development Self Review tool was undertaken. The Audit & Effectiveness Committee will
continue to review actions identified from the review in the coming academic year. The committee is also
engaged in assessing the effectiveness of Local Governance and, with the appointment of a new clerk, will
work with Local Governing Bodies to establish consistent procedures leading to best practice. As a
preliminary step the Committee directed each Local Governing Body to undertake a self-evaluation in July
2020 to be used to inform their respective Development Programmes for 20/21.
Overseeing the review and implementation of Trust wide policies.
Monitoring progress and any issues arising in school improvement via reports from academy executive
heads. The committee’s review is seen as an opportunity to flag issues that results have highlighted and
to discuss plans for mitigation, identifying cross Trust support if appropriate.
Monitoring the impact of Covid-19 across the Trust. Operations within schools have necessarily been
focused on supporting pupils with home learning and supporting those pupils in school with the requisite
level of staffing to ensure a safe teaching environment. The impact has been that many development
priorities for the 19/20 academic year have been put on hold and have been carried forward to the next
academic year which has impacted the capacity to develop new projects.






The Executive Leadership is responsible for driving forward the vision of the Trust.
Trustee
Mr John Kipps, Chief Executive Officer
Mr Harry James, Chair
Dr Joanne Dixon, Vice Chair
Mr Ivan Pryce
Mrs Susan Connor, Finance Director

Meetings attended
6
6
6
6
6

Out of a possible
6
6
6
6
6

The key issues for the Executive Leadership Team were:






Review of the year to date management accounts and balance sheet. As the Trust board meets less
than 6 times per year, monthly management accounts and balance sheet reconciliations, broken down by
Trust entity, are sent to the Chair of the Trust, the Executive Leadership Group and the Chairs of the
Local Governing Bodies.
Monitoring the on-going operational issues impacting the operations of the Trust and Schools, including
recruitment and succession planning.
Monitoring the financial and operational impact of supporting the Capella House School in its first year of
operation.
Driving forward the strategic direction of the Trust. Whilst this was possible in the first part of the
academic year this was severely impacted by the operational impact of the pandemic.
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REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered
improved value for money during the year by:








Ensuring the Scheme of Delegation is working effectively. Each school’s Local Governing Body is
accountable for the way in which the school’s resources are allocated to meet the objectives set out in their
respective School Development Plans. The Local Governing Body approves the annual budget and will
receive and approve the external auditors’ management report and take action on any recommendations
made by them following the annual audit. The Local Governing Body Finance Committee meets termly to
review the budget monitoring reports and to approve larger expenditure items and compliance in line with
the Trust Finance Policy. All monthly finance reports are subject to the Finance Director review and
passed to the Executive Leadership Group and Finance & Resources Committee for further scrutiny.
Creating economies of scale by sharing core administrative functions and investing in systems which will
create long term operational savings. The Trust has invested in a GDPR compliance monitoring system to
ensure focused compliance across the Trust. The Trust has also invested in, and is in the process of
implementing, a Trust wide HR system which will ensure consistency of HR best practice across the Trust
and ensure administrative time savings in areas such as recruitment.
Continuing to monitor the effective use of Trust wide Occupational Therapy funding by creating an inhouse provision. This includes an onsite professional Occupational Therapist and specially trained Higher
Level Teaching Assistants giving directed and specialised support to pupils and hence maximising the
potential of the funding available.
Monitoring pupils’ progress to ensure resources are targeted appropriately and pupil premium expenditure
is assessed to show effectiveness in improving the attainment of students on Free School Meals and
Looked After Children.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Auriga Academy Trust
for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.
CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trustees.
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THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK
The Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular it includes:








comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to buy in
a specialist internal audit service rather than use ‘in-house’ expertise. In the year ended 31st August 20, MHA
MacIntyre Hudson provided this service using an independent internal audit compliance team. Recognising
the change in requirements under the Academies Financial Handbook, the Audit & Effectiveness Committee is
reviewing a number of different bought-in independent internal audit proposals in order to ensure that the audit
scrutiny needs of the Trust are met in line with best value principles.
The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included a review of

Financial control procedures including those matters raised in the statutory audit findings report;

Management information and reports; and

A Governance review based on selected requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.
On an annual basis the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit & Effectiveness committee
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial
responsibilities.
The Trust can confirm that the internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned and that there
have been no material control issues arising requiring remedial action.
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:





the work of the internal auditor;
the work of the external auditor; and
the school resource management self-assessment tool; and
the work of the Trust Finance Director who has responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
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Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Auriga Academy Trust (the 'Academy Trust') for the year
ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and
Expenditure Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.
In our opinion the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:


the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or



the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Academy Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. Other
information includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic
Report, and the Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:


the information given in the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Strategic Report and the Directors
Report) for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.



the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic
Report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:


adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or



the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or



certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or



we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BIANCA SILVA BA ACA DChA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
MHA MacIntyre Hudson
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Abbey Place
24-28 Easton Street
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP11 1NT
Date: 18 January 2021
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE AURIGA
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22 October 2020 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by The Auriga Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.
This report is made solely to The Auriga Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Auriga Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Auriga Academy Trust and ESFA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of The Auriga Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Auriga Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 October 2016 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
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Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:








reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us,
relevant to our consideration of regularity;
a review of the objectives and activities of the Academy, with reference to the income streams and other
information available to us as auditors of the Academy;
testing of a sample of payroll payments to staff;
testing of a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties;
consideration of governance issues;
evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, and testing as appropriate; and
making appropriate enquiries of the Accounting Officer.

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.
Reporting Accountant
MHA MacIntyre Hudson
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Abbey Place
24-28 Easton Street
High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP11 1NT
Date: 18 January 2021
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Note

Unrestricted
funds
2020
£

Restricted
funds
2020
£

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2019
£

9,090,862

9,115,158

51,138

Income from:
Donations and capital
grants

3

Charitable activities

4

Other trading activities

5

63,222

Investments

6

1,699

Total income

24,296
-

8,378,992

-

8,378,992

7,436,591

7,612

-

70,834

88,707

-

1,699

2,894

-

89,217

8,386,604

9,090,862

17,566,683

7,579,330

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities

8

15,582

8,950,525

437,089

9,403,196

7,999,645

Total expenditure

7

15,582

8,950,525

437,089

9,403,196

7,999,645

(563,921)

8,653,773

8,163,487

101,409

Net income/
(expenditure)
Transfers between
funds

73,635

16

-

(101,409)

23

-

(888,000)

-

(420,315)

-

Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes
Net movement in
funds

-

(888,000)

73,635

(1,553,330)

8,755,182

7,275,487

230,848

(1,138,264)

8,183,009

7,275,593

73,635

(1,553,330)

8,755,182

7,275,487

304,483

(2,691,594)

16,938,191

14,551,080

(197,000)
(617,315)

Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
forward
Net movement in
funds
Total funds carried
forward

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
The notes on pages 32 to 62 form part of these financial statements.
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7,892,908
(617,315)
7,275,593

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Note

2020
£

2019
£

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities

19

316,920

27,790

Cash flows from investing activities

20

(165,091)

(183,832)

151,829

(156,042)

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
The notes on pages 32 to 62 from part of these financial statements
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21, 22

1,543,091

1,699,133

1,694,920

1,543,091

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.
1.2 Going concern
The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect
of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements
and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy
Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
1.3 Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.


Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performancerelated conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.



Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.



Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.



Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.



Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Academy Trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate
fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy
Trust's accounting policies.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
1.4 Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.


Charitable activities
Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational
operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust
apportioned to charitable activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.5 Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount. Prepayments are valued at the
amount prepaid.
1.6 Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
1.7 Liabilities and provisions
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide.
Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a
result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
1.8 Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income
and Expenditure Account. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each
asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
Long-term leasehold property
Fixtures and fittings
Computer equipment

- 2% on cost
- Straight line over 7 years
- Straight line over 3 years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating Income and Expenditure
Account.
1.9 Leased assets
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a
straight line basis over the lease term.
1.10 Financial instruments
The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:
Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
1.11 Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
1.12 Pensions
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to net
income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on
the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of
the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest
income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)
1.13 Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

2.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:
The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Critical areas of judgement:
The judgements that have had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements are
those concerning the choice of depreciation policies and asset lives.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
3.

Income from donations and capital grants

Unrestricted
funds
2020
£
Donations

24,296

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
2020
£
-

Total
funds
2020
£
24,296

Capital grants

-

90,862

90,862

Local authority donated asset

-

9,000,000

9,000,000

24,296

9,090,862

9,115,158

Unrestricted
funds
2019
£

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

Donations

9,456

Capital grants

9,456
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9,456

41,682

41,682

41,682

51,138

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

4.

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations
Restricted
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

2,590,406

2,590,406

Pupil premium

109,675

109,675

Other DfE/ESFA grants

366,297

366,297

3,066,378

3,066,378

5,187,963

5,187,963

98,235

98,235

5,286,198

5,286,198

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)

Other government grants
SEN funding
Other government grants

Other funding
Trip income
Catering income - pupils

954

954

25,462

25,462

26,416

26,416

8,378,992

8,378,992

There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the government grants above.
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4.

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations (continued)
Restricted
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

2,274,031

2,274,031

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium
Other DfE/ESFA grants

98,803

98,803

261,118

261,118

2,633,952

2,633,952

4,634,616

4,634,616

134,775

134,775

4,769,391

4,769,391

Other government grants
SEN funding
Other government grants

Other funding
Trip income
Catering income - pupils

5.

3,449

3,449

29,799

29,799

33,248

33,248

7,436,591

7,436,591

Restricted
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

Income from other trading activities
Unrestricted
funds
2020
£
Catering income - staff

756

Hire of facilities

20,549

Supply teacher insurance income

-

Other income

41,917
63,222
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756

-

20,549

7,612
7,612

7,612
41,917
70,834

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
5.

Income from other trading activities (continued)
Unrestricted
funds
2019
£
Catering income - staff

1,763

Hire of facilities

24,936

Supply teacher insurance income

-

Other income

49,335
76,034

6.

Restricted
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

-

1,763

-

24,936

12,673
-

12,673
49,335

12,673

88,707

Unrestricted
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

1,699

1,699

Unrestricted
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

2,894

2,894

Investment income

Investment income

Investment income
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7.

Expenditure
Staff Costs
2020
£

Premises
2020
£

Other
2020
£

Total
2020
£

Direct costs

6,110,627

161,800

740,523

7,012,950

Allocated support costs

1,312,971

381,807

695,468

2,390,246

7,423,598

543,607

1,435,991

9,403,196

Staff Costs
2019
£

Premises
2019
£

Other
2019
£

Total
2019
£

5,342,782

161,800

568,056

6,072,638

987,731

296,376

642,900

1,927,007

6,330,513

458,176

1,210,956

7,999,645

Activities
undertaken
directly
2020
£

Support
costs
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

7,012,950

2,390,246

9,403,196

Activities
undertaken
directly
2019
£

Support
costs
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

6,072,638

1,927,007

7,999,645

Academy Trust's educational operations:

Academy Trust's educational operations:
Direct costs
Allocated support costs

8.

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Academy trust's educational operations

Academy trust's educational operations
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8.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Depreciation

Total
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2019
£

6,110,627

5,342,782

437,089

274,724

Technology costs

11,702

8,475

Educational supplies

85,384

83,443

7,429

9,232

Educational consultancy

165,190

177,740

Other direct costs

195,529

176,242

7,012,950

6,072,638

Total
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2019
£

Examination fees

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance cost

37,000

35,000

1,312,971

987,731

Technology costs

138,907

97,274

Premises costs

381,807

304,404

Other support costs

485,444

471,549

34,117

31,049

2,390,246

1,927,007

Staff costs

Governance costs
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9.

Net income/(expenditure)
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:
2020
£

2019
£

9,625

3,756

437,089

274,724

- audit

13,500

10,000

- other services

13,825

10,275

2020
£

2019
£

Wages and salaries

4,601,502

3,865,089

Social security costs

425,285

342,205

1,499,789

1,028,540

6,526,576

5,235,834

897,022

1,075,985

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

10.

Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

-

18,694

7,423,598

6,330,513

2020
£

2019
£

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

-

12,463

Severance payments

-

6,231

-

18,694

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
Included within staff restructuring costs are no non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments (2019:
an individual payment of £6,231).
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10.

Staff (continued)
c. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

Teaching
Administration and support
Management

2020
No.

2019
No.

43

37

125

101

17

14

185

152

d. Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:
2020
No.

2019
No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000

5

4

In the band £70,001 - £80,000

1

1

In the band £80,001 - £90,000

1

1

In the band £90,001 - £100,000

-

In the band £100,001 - £110,000

1
1

-

e. Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,295,430 (2019 - £1,045,921).
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11.

Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses
One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

J Kipps
I Pryce
S Connor

Remuneration
Pension contributions paid
Remuneration
Pension contributions paid
Remuneration
Pension contributions paid

2020
2019
£
£
100,000 - 105,000 95,000 - 100,000
20,000 - 25,000 15,000 - 20,000
85,000 - 90,000 80,000 - 85,000
20,000 - 25,000 10,000 - 15,000
50,000 - 55,000 45,000 - 50,000
10,000 - 15,000
5,000 - 10,000

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses totalling £1,129 were reimbursed to four Trustees
(2019 - £1,353 to three Trustees).
12.

Trustees' and officers' insurance
The Academy Trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13.

Tangible fixed assets
Long-term
leasehold
property
£

Furniture
and fittings
£

Computer
equipment
£

Total
£

At 1 September 2019

8,090,000

392,506

258,699

8,741,205

Additions

9,000,000

157,610

100,042

9,257,652

17,090,000

550,116

358,741

17,998,857

At 1 September 2019

471,917

59,610

92,050

623,577

Charge for the year

260,700

66,544

109,845

437,089

At 31 August 2020

732,617

126,154

201,895

1,060,666

At 31 August 2020

16,357,383

423,962

156,846

16,938,191

At 31 August 2019

7,618,083

332,896

166,649

8,117,628

Cost or valuation

At 31 August 2020

Depreciation

Net book value

The leasehold buildings are owned by the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames. The Academy
Trust has a 125 year lease over the buildings and no payments to the London Borough of Richmond
upon Thames are required under the lease.
During the year there was an acquistion of the freehold of two school buildings which were donated by
the trust at a value of £9,000,000.

Page 47

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
14.

15.

Debtors
2020
£

2019
£

Trade debtors

25,719

73,989

Other debtors

6,109

-

Prepayments and accrued income

63,431

104,720

VAT recoverable

85,551

114,767

180,810

293,476

2020
£

2019
£

169,184

193,195

99,528

86,879

Other creditors

147,846

82,272

Accruals and deferred income

255,283

190,256

671,841

552,602

2020
£

2019
£

13,728

52,351

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

10,012

13,728

(13,728)

(52,351)

10,012

13,728

Deferred income comprises monies received in advance for occupational therapy and universal infant
free school meals.
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16.

Statement of funds
Balance at 1
September
2019
£

Income Expenditure
£
£

Transfers
in/out
£

Gains/
(Losses)
£

Balance at
31 August
2020
£

Unrestricted funds
General unrestricted
Funds

230,848

89,217

(15,582)

145,760

2,590,406

(2,577,327)

-

-

304,483

-

57,430

Restricted general
funds
General Annual
Grant

(101,409)

Pupil premium

-

109,675

(109,675)

-

-

-

Other DfE/ESFA
revenue grant

-

366,297

(366,297)

-

-

-

Other local authority
grants

-

5,187,963

(5,187,963)

-

-

-

Other restricted
income

-

132,263

(132,263)

-

-

-

-

-

Funds on conversion
Pension reserve

841,976
(2,126,000)
(1,138,264)

8,386,604

(577,000)
(8,950,525)

(101,409)

841,976

(888,000)

(3,591,000)

(888,000)

(2,691,594)

Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed asset fund

8,117,628

DfE/ESFA grants

61,501

Other capital grants
Restricted fixed
asset donations

3,880
-

90,862
9,000,000

(437,089)

9,257,652

-

16,938,191

-

(152,363)

-

-

-

(3,880)

-

-

-

(9,000,000)

-

-

8,183,009

9,090,862

(437,089)

Total Restricted
funds

7,044,745

17,477,466

(9,387,614)

-

(888,000)

14,246,597

Total funds

7,275,593

17,566,683

(9,403,196)

-

(888,000)

14,551,080
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
All general funds are held for the purpose of education in line with the Academy's objectives.
The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the
Academy that has been provided to the academy via the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the
Department for Education. The GAG fund has been set up because the GAG must be used for the
normal running costs of the Academy.
Pupil premium represents pupil premium funding received from the DfE and the associated expenditure.
The local authority restricted fund represents other funding received from the local authority in relation to
specific purposes such as SEN funding.
The other DfE/ESFA restricted fund represents other funding received from the government which does
not form part of GAG but is received in relation to specific purposes.
Income on conversion represent amounts transferred to the Academy Trust on conversion to Academy
status.
The other restricted income fund represents donations to the Academy Trust to be expended on the
Academy Trust's educational activities.
The pension reserve fund has been created to separately identify the pension deficit transferred from the
local authority upon conversion to academy status, and through which all the pension scheme
movements are recognised. The trust is planning to increase these funds to a surplus through increased
contributions in the coming years.
The fixed asset fund includes the tangible assets gifted to the Academy upon conversion which represent
the school site including the leasehold property, fixed assets purchased by the Academy Trust and
unspent capital grants. Depreciation charged on those assets is allocated to the fund.
Transfers between restricted and restricted fixed assets funds represents funding of fixed asset
additions.
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:
2020
£

2019
£

Clarendon School

673,727

439,452

Strathmore School

447,746

677,769

Central services

(1,666)

Capella House Free School

84,082

102,153

1,203,889

1,218,584

Restricted fixed asset fund

16,938,191

8,183,009

Pension reserve

(3,591,000)

(2,126,000)

Total

14,551,080

7,275,593

Other
Other costs
support Educational
excluding
staff costs
supplies depreciation
£
£
£

Total
2020
£

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve

(790)

Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and
educational
support
staff costs
£
Clarendon School

2,958,152

503,996

34,659

628,488

4,125,295

Strathmore School

2,782,605

515,103

46,200

512,269

3,856,177

Central services
Capella House Free School
Academy Trust

229,029

399,301

381,274

-

170,272
112,196

4,525

87,339

585,334

6,122,031

1,301,567

85,384

1,457,125

8,966,107
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:
Teaching
and
educational
Other
support staff support staff
costs
costs
£
£

Educational
supplies
£

Other costs
excluding
depreciation
£

Total
2019
£

Clarendon School

2,844,264

332,283

39,913

619,667

3,836,127

Strathmore School

2,596,978

210,089

43,530

411,176

3,261,773

Central services

7,429

420,981

-

90,477

518,887

Capella House Free School

2,099

81,481

-

24,554

108,134

5,450,770

1,044,834

1,145,874

7,724,921

Academy Trust
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:
Balance at
1 September
2018
£

Income
£

Expenditure
£

162,116

88,384

(19,652)

9,478

2,274,031

(2,128,036)

Transfers
in/out
£

Gains/
(Losses)
£

Balance at
31 August
2019
£

Unrestricted funds

General unrestricted
Funds

-

-

230,848

-

145,760

Restricted general
funds
General Annual
Grant

(9,713)

Pupil premium

-

98,803

(98,803)

-

-

-

Other DfE/ESFA
revenue grant

-

261,118

(261,118)

-

-

-

Other local authority
grants

-

4,634,616

(4,634,616)

-

-

-

-

180,696

(180,696)

-

-

-

(2,000)

-

-

-

Other restricted
income
Teaching school
Funds on conversion
Pension reserve

2,000

-

1,080,881

-

(1,529,000)

-

(436,641)

7,449,264

(400,000)
(7,705,269)

(238,905)
(248,618)

-

841,976

(197,000)

(2,126,000)

(197,000)

(1,138,264)

Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed asset fund

8,143,734

DfE/ESFA grants

19,819

Other capital grants

3,880

41,682
-

(274,724)

248,618

-

8,117,628

-

-

-

61,501

-

-

-

3,880

-

8,183,009

8,167,433

41,682

(274,724)

Total Restricted
funds

7,730,792

7,490,946

(7,979,993)

-

(197,000)

7,044,745

Total funds

7,892,908

7,579,330

(7,999,645)

-

(197,000)

7,275,593
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17.

Central services
The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:


Administration and governance costs

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
Allocation of costs arising
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:
2020
£

2019
£

Clarendon School

153,686

57,683

Strathmore School

138,586

61,203

Capella House School

6,318

Total

298,590
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18.

Analysis of net assets between funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current period
Unrestricted
funds
2020
£
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

304,483

Restricted
funds
2020
£
1,571,247

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
2020
£

Total
funds
2020
£

16,938,191

16,938,191

-

1,875,730

Creditors due within one year

-

(671,841)

-

(671,841)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

-

(3,591,000)

-

(3,591,000)

Total

304,483

(2,691,594)

16,938,191

14,551,080

Restricted
funds
2019
£

Restricted
fixed asset
funds
2019
£

Total
funds
2019
£

8,117,628

8,117,628

65,381

1,836,567

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period
Unrestricted
funds
2019
£
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

230,848

1,540,338

Creditors due within one year

-

(552,602)

-

(552,602)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

-

(2,126,000)

-

(2,126,000)

Total

230,848
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19.

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the period (as per Statement of Financial
Activities)

2020
£

2019
£

8,163,487

(420,315)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

437,089

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Decrease in stocks

-

9,713

112,666

(10,420)

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

119,239

(181,336)

(1,699)

(2,894)

Pension adjustments

577,000

400,000

Net cash provided by operating activities

316,920

27,790

2020
£

2019
£

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible assets

1,699
(9,257,652)

Capital grants from DfE Group

90,862

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Net cash used in investing activities

21.

(41,682)

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Dividends, interest and rents from investments

20.

(9,090,862)

274,724

9,000,000

2,894
(228,408)
41,682
-

(165,091)

(183,832)

2020
£

2019
£

1,694,920

1,543,091

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand
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22.

Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September
2019
£
Cash at bank and in hand

23.

At 31
Cash flows August 2020
£
£

1,543,091

151,829

1,694,920

1,543,091

151,829

1,694,920

Pension commitments
The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wandsworth Council. Both are multiemployer defined benefit schemes.
The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.
Contributions amounting to £120,042 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 - £80,412)
and are included within creditors.
Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies.
All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Page 57

THE AURIGA ACADEMY TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
23.

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:


employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)



total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million



the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £525,464 (2019 - £327,495).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trusteeadministered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £542,000 (2019
- £433,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £422,000 (2019 - £342,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £120,0000 (2019 - £91,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
20.3% for Strathmore School, 23.2% for Clarendon School and 19% for Capella House School for
employers and between 5.5% and 12.5% per cent for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions
2020
%

2019
%

Rate of increase in salaries

3.23

3.65

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation

2.23

2.15

Discount rate for scheme liabilities

1.63

1.90

Inflation assumption (CPI)

2.23

2.15

RPI increase

3.03

3.15

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
2020
Years

2019
Years

Males

21.8

23.4

Females

24.4

24.8

Males

23.2

25.1

Females

25.9

26.7

2020
£000

2019
£000

Discount rate +0.1%

8,751

6,057

Discount rate -0.1%

9,229

6,404

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase

9,313

6,462

Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

8,673

6,003

CPI rate +0.1%

9,213

6,389

CPI rate -0.1%

8,767

6,072

Retiring today

Retiring in 20 years

Sensitivity analysis
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Pension commitments (continued)
The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:
2020
£

2019
£

3,280,000

2,748,000

Gilts

118,000

117,000

Bonds

760,000

462,000

Property

459,000

204,000

Cash and other liquid assets

282,000

47,000

Alternative assets

497,000

524,000

5,396,000

4,102,000

2020
£

2019
£

(960,000)

(659,000)

Equities

Total market value of assets
The actual return on scheme assets was £192,000 (2019 - £409,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost

-

Interest cost
Administrative expenses
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

(46,000)

(37,000)

(35,000)

(2,000)

(2,000)

(999,000)

(742,000)

2020
£

2019
£

6,228,000

4,990,000

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Past service cost

-

46,000

Current service cost

960,000

659,000

Interest cost

120,000

131,000

Employee contributions

120,000

91,000

1,553,000

510,000

Actuarial losses
Benefits paid

6,000

Closing defined benefit obligation

8,987,000
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23.

Pension commitments (continued)
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2020
£

2019
£

4,102,000

3,461,000

Interest income

83,000

96,000

Actuarial gains

665,000

313,000

Employer contributions

422,000

342,000

Employee contributions

120,000

91,000

Opening fair value of scheme assets

Benefits paid

6,000

Administration expenses

(2,000)

Closing fair value of scheme assets

(199,000)
(2,000)

5,396,000

4,102,000

2020
£

2019
£

(1,553,000)

(510,000)

The amount shown in the Statement of Financial Activities is:
Changes in financial assumptions
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pension schemes

665,000

313,000

(888,000)

(197,000)

2020
£

2019
£

(8,987,000)

(6,228,000)

5,396,000

4,102,000

(3,591,000)

(2,126,000)

The amount shown in the Balance Sheet is:
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of scheme assets
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
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24.

Operating lease commitments
At 31 August 2020 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

25.

2020
£

2019
£

Not later than 1 year

6,781

9,242

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

2,261

9,047

9,042

18,289

Members' liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

26.

Related party transactions
Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of
all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.
Dr L Goodwin is also a Trustee of Every Child, Every Day Academy Trust. During the year £16,384 (2019
- £11,171) was charged by Every Child, Every Day Academy Trust for support services. £Nil was
outstanding at the year end (2019 - £Nil).
No other related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain Trustees'
expenses and remuneration disclosed in note 11.
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